
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONDAY 6 MARCH 2023 at 2pm. 
 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - CIVIC SUITE 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

LICENSING ACT PANEL  

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: Councillors A Feeney,  
P Hogarth MBE (Chairman), and 
M McCarthy. 
 

 
PAUL JOHNSON 
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121-704 6000  
 
David Acton 
Tel: 0121 704-6156 
Email: dacton@solihull.gov.uk 
 
Date 15 February 2023 
 

 
LICENSING ACT PANEL 

 
MONDAY 6 MARCH 2023 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.  REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE - BOSWORTH FOOD STORES, 151 
BOSWORTH DRIVE, FORDBRIDGE (Pages 5 - 44) 
To consider a review of the premises licence granted in respect of Bosworth 
Food Stores, 151 Bosworth Drive, Fordbridge, B37 5BT, following an application 
submitted by Richard Staveley, Trading Standards and Environment Manager at 
Solihull Council. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Meeting date: 
 
Report to: 
 
Report title:  
 
 
 
 
Report from: 
 
Report author/lead 
contact officer:   
 

6 March 2023 
 
Licensing Act Panel 
 
Review of the premises licence granted in respect of Bosworth 
Food Stores, 151 Bosworth Drive, Fordbridge, B37 5BT, following 
an application submitted by Richard Staveley, Trading Standards 
and Environment Manager at Solihull Council.   
 
Director for Economy & Infrastructure  
 
Annie Bettison – Licensing Team Leader 
abettison@solihull.gov.uk

 
Wards affected:  

☐ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 

☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 

☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 

☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 

 

 
Public/private 
report: 
 

Public 

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph:  
 

N/A 

 
1. Executive Summary 

1.1 To consider a review of the premises licence granted in respect of Bosworth Food 
Stores, 151 Bosworth Drive, Fordbridge. 
 

1.2 The review is required following an application submitted by Richard Staveley on 11 
January 2023.  The statutory consultation period of 28 days finished on 7 February 
2023 and Licensing Authority is now obliged to consider the application within a 
further 20 working days of that date. 

2. Decision(s) Recommended 

2.1 That the panel consider the application and all representations and make an 
appropriate and proportionate decision in line with legislation and guidance. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Report Title: Review of the premises licence granted in respect of Bosworth Food 
Stores, 151 Bosworth Drive, Fordbridge, B37 5BT, following an 
application submitted by Richard Staveley, Trading Standards and 
Environment Manager at Solihull Council.  

 
1. Matters for Consideration  

1.1 Bosworth Food Stores is an off-licence and general store set within a parade of shops 
on Bosworth Drive in Fordbridge. The premises licence, number SOL/PR/005426 was 
originally granted by way of conversion from the Licensing Act 1964 and came in to 
force on 24 November 2005. The most recent version was granted on 23 March 2016, 
following a variation to the designated premises supervisor, and is attached at 
Appendix A. 

1.2 On 11 January 2023 an application was received from Richard Staveley, Trading 
Standards and Environment Manager, for the review of the premises licence following 
the sale razor blades to a child during a test purchasing exercise (reference 
23/00098/LAPREV).  The application is attached at Appendix B. 

1.3 Following consultation, three representations have been received from West Midlands 
Police, Public Health and the Local Safeguarding Children’s Partnership, which are 
attached at Appendix C. 

2. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

2.1 The steps the Licensing Act Panel may take (if any) are as follows: 

(a) Modify the conditions of the premises licence (including the adding, altering or 
omitting of any condition); 

(b) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

(c) Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor; 

(d) Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

(e) Revoke the licence. 

2.2 The decision of the Panel must be proportionate and appropriate for the promotion of 
the four licensing objectives, which are: 

(a) The prevention of crime and disorder 

(b) Public safety 

(c) The prevention of public nuisance 

(d) The Protection of children from harm 

Page 6



3. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

3.1 The preferred option must be in line with the appropriate legislation and guidance and 
full reasons must be given for the decision. 

3.2 Officers do not have the delegated authority to make decisions on this matter. 

4. Implications and Considerations 

4.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

People and Communities: 

1. Improving outcomes for children and 
young people in Solihull. 

2. Good quality, responsive, and dignified 
care and support for Adults in Solihull 
when they need it. 

3. Take action to improve life chances and 
health outcomes in our most 
disadvantaged communities. 

4. Enable communities to thrive. 

To support residents and businesses to 
work together, ensuring the needs of both 
are effectively balanced. 

Economy: 

5. Develop and promote the borough’s 
economy, with a focus on revitalising 
our town and local centres. 

6. Maximising the opportunities of UK 
Central and HS2. 

7. Increase the supply of affordable and 
social housing that is environmentally 
sustainable. 

To promote and support responsible 
businesses operating within the hospitality 
sector. 

Environment: 

8. Enhance our natural environment, 
improve air quality and reduce net 
carbon emissions. 

N/A 

9. Promote employee wellbeing N/A 

4.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

4.2.1 All Responsible Authorities were consulted as follows: 

Solihull MBC – Solihull Local Children’s Partnership 

Solihull MBC - Environmental Health 

 Solihull MBC – Licensing Authority 

Page 7

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/About-the-Council/The-Council-plan


 Solihull MBC – Planning 

 Solihull MBC – Public Health 

 Home Office (Immigration) 

 West Midlands Fire Service 

 West Midlands Police 

4.2.2 The review application was advertised by way of statutory notices posted at the 
premises, at the licensing office and on the licensing register on the Council website.  
The consultation period ran from 11 January – 7 February 2023. 

4.3 Financial implications: 

4.3.1 None 

4.4 Legal implications: 

4.4.1 Members are reminded of the need to have regard to the relevant provisions of the 
European Convention on Human Rights, the Human Rights Act 1998 and the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998. 

4.4.2 Members should also have regard to statutory guidance issued by the Home Office 
under s182 of the Licensing Act (last revised April 2018), as well as the Council’s own 
Statement of Licensing Policy (published December 2022). 

4.5 Risk implications, including Risk Appetite: 

4.5.1 If the applicant (Richard Staveley), the premises licence holder or any other person is 
aggrieved by the decision of the panel, they may appeal to Birmingham Magistrates 
Court within 21 days of receiving notification of the decision. 

4.6 Equality implications: 

4.6.1 None identified 

4.7 Linkages to our work with the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA), Local 
Enterprise Partnership or the Birmingham & Solihull Integrated Care System (ICS): 

4.7.1 No specific linkages – this is a statutory process. 

5. List of appendices referred to 

5.1 Appendix A – Current Premises Licence 

Appendix B – Review application 

Appendix C – Representation 

Page 8



6. Background papers used to compile this report 

6.1 None 

7. List of Other Relevant Documents 

7.1 None 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Premises Licence Number SOL/PR/005426 

                                                                                                                                                

 
  

 

 

 

Part One – Premises Details 
 
Postal address of premises 
 
 
 
 

Bosworth Store Limited 
157 Bosworth Drive 
Fordbridge 
Solihull,  
B37 5BT 

Telephone 0121 770 5748 

 

Where the licence is limited, the dates: N/A 

 

Licensable activities 
authorised by the licence 

The time the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable 
activities 

Supply of alcohol by retail 
(for consumption off the 
premises) 

0800 - 2300 Monday - Saturday 
1000 - 2230 Sunday 
0800 - 2230 Good Friday 
1200 - 1500 and 1900 - 2230 Christmas Day 

The opening hours of the 
premises 

0800 - 2300 Monday - Saturday 
1000 - 2230 Sunday 

 

 

Part Two 
 
Name of holder of premises licence Mr Abid Ali 

Address 
 

151 Bosworth Drive 
Fordbridge 
Solihull, Birmingham, West Mid 
B37 5BT 

Telephone number 0121 770 5748 

E-mail - 

Registered number of holder, eg company 
number, charity number (where applicable) 

- 

 

Name of designated supervisor Mohammed Azeem 

Personal licence number 574/1 

Issuing Authority Birmingham City Council 

 

Licensing Act 2003 
Premises Licence 

Page 11



 

Premises Licence Number SOL/PR/005426 

 
 

Mandatory Conditions applicable to all Premises Licences & Club Premises Certificates  

under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

The following conditions apply where the Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate 

authorises the sale of alcohol. They are not an exact copy of the legislation and slightly 

paraphrase it. 

 

All supplies of alcohol 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or 

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal 

licence is suspended. 

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 

Exhibition of films 

1. Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition 

requiring the admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with 

this section. 

2. Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, 

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation by that body. 

3. Where 

(a) The film classification body is not specified in the licence, or 

(b) The relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies to 

the film in question, 

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that 

licensing authority. 

4. In this section “children” means any person aged under 18; and “film classification body” means the 

person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 

(c39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification). 

Door supervision 

1. Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must 

be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must: 

(a) Be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 

2001; or 

(b) Be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act. 

Page 12



 

Premises Licence Number SOL/PR/005426 

2. But nothing in subsection 1. Requires such a condition to be imposed: 

(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 

2001 (c12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or 

(b) in respect of premises in relation to: 

(i) Any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used 

exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising films or 

under a gaming licence, or 

(ii) Any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by regulations under 

that Act. 

3. For the purposes of this section: 

(a) “security activity” means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and, which 

is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act, 

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it applies in 

relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule. 

Age verification policy 

1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification 

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

2. The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply 

of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of 

age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 

alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

(a) a holographic mark, or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

Permitted price 

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979 

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula 

P = D + (D x V) 

where 

(i) P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date 

of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

Page 13



 

Premises Licence Number SOL/PR/005426 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises 

licence 

(i) the holder of the premises licence. 

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; 

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 

certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables 

the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 

1994. 

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) 

not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the 

price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a 

day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as 

a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which 

take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



 

Premises Licence Number SOL/PR/005426 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE 
 
a) General 

None 
 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 
None 
 

c) Public safety 
None 
 

d) The prevention of public nuisance 
None 
 

e) The protection of children from harm 
 None 
 
CONDITIONS TRANSFERRED FROM PREVIOUS LEGISLATION 
  
CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY 
 Not applicable 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOWING A LICENSING HEARING 
 Not applicable 
 
PLANS 
The plan attached to this licence is held by Solihull MBC 

 
 

 
 
 

Licensing Team Leader  
Licensing, Central Depot, Moat Lane, Solihull, West Midlands, B91 2LW 

Tel: 0121 704 6830  
 

 

Page 15



 

Premises Licence Number SOL/PR/005426 

 
                                                                                                                                                

 
  

 

 

 

Postal address of premises 
 
 
 
 

Bosworth News 
157 Bosworth Drive 
Fordbridge 
Solihull 
B37 5BT 

Telephone 0121 770 5748 
 

Name of holder of premises licence Mr Abid Ali 

Address 
 
 

151 Bosworth Drive 
Fordbridge 
Solihull, Birmingham, West Mid 
B37 5BT 

Telephone number 0121 770 5748 

E-mail - 

Registered number of holder, eg company 
number, charity number (where applicable) 

- 

 

Name of designated supervisor Mohammed Azeem 

Personal licence number 574/1 

Issuing authority Birmingham City Council 
 

Where the licence is limited, the dates: N/A 
 

State whether access to the premises by 
children is restricted or prohibited 

Restricted by Licensing Act 2003 

 

Licensable activities authorised by 
the licence 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of 
licensable activities 

Supply of alcohol by retail (for 
consumption off the premises) 

0800 - 2300 Monday - Saturday 
1000 - 2230 Sunday 
0800 - 2230 Good Friday 
1200 - 1500 and 1900 - 2230 Christmas Day 

The opening hours of the premises 0800 - 2300 Monday - Saturday 
1000 - 2230 Sunday 

 

Licensing Act 2003 
Summary of Premises Licence 
 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Review of Premises Licence - Bosworth Food Stores, 151 Bosworth Drive, Fordbridge
	BD Appendix A
	BD Appendix B
	BD Appendix C


